
 

 

 

 

NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING AND AGENDA 

ALAMEDA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

THURSDAY, MARCH 9, 2023 

2:00 P.M. 

DUBLIN SAN RAMON SERVICES DISTRICT 

Sblend Sblendorio, Chair –– Nate Miley –– David Haubert –– Melissa Hernandez ––Karla Brown–– Ralph Johnson  

John Marchand, Alternate –– Georgean Vonheeder-Leopold, Alternate  

The public may attend this meeting in person at the following location: Dublin San Ramon Services District 

7051 Dublin Boulevard, Dublin, California 94568 

If you need assistance before the meeting, please contact Executive Officer, Rachel Jones at: 

rachel.jones@acgov.org  

1. 2:00 P.M. – Call to Order

2. Public Comment:  Anyone from the audience may address the Commission on any matter not listed on

the agenda and within the jurisdiction of Alameda LAFCO.  The Commission cannot act upon matters

not appearing on the agenda.  Speakers are limited to three (3) minutes.

3. Consent Items:

a. Approval of Meeting Minutes: January 12, 2023 Regular Meeting

b. Proposed Contract Amendment with ACRCD

c. Quarterly Budget Report for FY 2022-2023

4. Draft Operating Budget and Workplan for FY 2023-2024 – (Public Hearing)

The Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) will consider adopting a draft budget

and workplan for fiscal year 2023-2024 in anticipation of taking final action at its next regular meeting.

Proposed budget expenses total $784,740, representing an increase of $38,312 or 5.1% from the current

fiscal year. The increase is marked by expenses for professional services in the Service and Supplies

Unit for additional LAFCO studies, and a rise in membership and travel costs.

LAFCO Staff Recommendation: Adopt the resolution, circulate the proposed budget for review and

comment, and direct staff to return with a final budget as part of a noticed hearing at the next regular

meeting.

LAFCO 
Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission

1

mailto:rachel.jones@acgov.org


ALAMEDA LAFCO 
March 9, 2023 Regular Meeting Agenda Page 2 of 3

5. Review of Draft Scope of Analysis | Agricultural Land Use Designation Project – (Business)

The Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) will receive a draft scope of analysis to

guide a potential project for the County of Alameda’s Planning Department on the review of land use

designations for agricultural land in the unincorporated areas of Alameda County.

LAFCO Staff Recommendation: Review draft scope and identify any desired changes before

authorizing staff to solicit comments from the County Planning Department.

6. Matters Initiated by Members of the Commission

7. Executive Officer Report

8. Informational Items

a. Current and Pending Proposals

b. Progress Report on Work Plan

c. CALAFCO Staff Workshop from April 26-28 in Murphys, California

d. Strategic Planning Workshop rescheduled for Friday, June 23rd at Dublin San Ramon Services

District

e. Commissioners with terms ending May 2023:

1. David Haubert

9. 1

5

.

Adjournment of Regular Meeting 

Next Meetings of the Commission 

Policy and Budget Committee Meeting  

Thursday, April 6, 2023 at 2:00 p.m., Dublin City Hall 

Regular Meeting 

Thursday, May 11 2023 at 2:00 p.m., Dublin City Hall, Council Chambers (Hybrid Meeting) 

2



ALAMEDA LAFCO 
March 9, 2023 Regular Meeting Agenda Page 3 of 3

DISCLOSURE OF BUSINESS OR CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTIONS TO COMMISSIONERS 

Government Code Section 84308 requires that a Commissioner (regular or alternate) disqualify herself or himself and not participate 

in a proceeding involving an "entitlement for use" application if, within the last twelve months, the Commissioner has received $250 or 

more in business or campaign contributions from an applicant, an agent of an applicant, or any financially interested person who 

actively supports or opposes a decision on the matter. A LAFCo decision approving a proposal (e.g., for an annexation) will often be an 

"entitlement for use" within the meaning of Section 84308.  Sphere of Influence determinations are exempt under Government Code Section 

84308. 

If you are an applicant or an agent of an applicant on such a matter to be heard by the Commission and if you have made business or 

campaign contributions totaling $250 or more to any Commissioner in the past twelve months, Section 84308(d) requires that you disclose 

that fact for the official record of the proceeding. The disclosure of any such contribution (including the amount of the contribution and the 

name of the recipient Commissioner) must be made either: l) In writing and delivered to the Secretary of the Commission prior to the hearing 

on the matter, or 2) By oral declaration made at the time the hearing on the matter is opened. Contribution disclosure forms are available at 

the meeting for anyone who prefers to disclose contributions in writing. 

Pursuant to GC Section 84308, if you wish to participate in the above proceedings, you or your agent are prohibited from making a campaign 
contribution of $250 or more to any Commissioner. This prohibition begins on the date you begin to actively support or oppose an application 

before LAFCO and continues until 3 months after a final decision is rendered by LAFCO.  If you or your agent have made a contribution 
of $250 or more to any Commissioner during the 12 months preceding the decision, in the proceeding that Commissioner must disqualify 
himself or herself from the decision. However, disqualification is not required if the Commissioner returns that campaign contribution within 
30 days of learning both about the contribution and the fact that you are a participant in the proceedings. Separately, any person with a 
disability under the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) may receive a copy of the agenda or a copy of all the documents constituting the 
agenda packet for a meeting upon request. Any person with a disability covered under the ADA may also request a disability-related 
modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, in order to participate in a public meeting. Please contact the LAFCO 
office at least three (3) working days prior to the meeting for any requested arrangements or accommodations. 

Alameda LAFCO Administrative Office 
224 West Winton Avenue, Suite 110 

Hayward, CA 94544 

T: 510.670.6267 

W: alamedalafco.org

3



     
  

 
 

LAFCO 
Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission   
 

 

Administrative Office 
Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
224 West Winton Avenue, Suite 110 
Hayward, California 94544 
T:  510.670.6267 
www.alamedalafco.org 

Karla Brown, Regular 
City of Pleasanton 
 
Melissa Hernandez, Regular 
City of Dublin  
 
John Marchand, Alternate  
City of Livermore 
 
 

Ralph Johnson, Regular  
Castro Valley Sanitary District 
 
Vacant, Regular  
Special District Member 
 
Georgean Vonheeder-Leopold, Alternate 
Dublin San Ramon Services District 

 

Sblendorio, Chair 
Public Member  
 
Vacant, Alternate 
Public Member 

Nate Miley, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
David Haubert, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Vacant, Alternate 
County of Alameda  
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

March 9, 2023  

Item No. 3a 

 

 

 

 

TO:  Alameda Commissioners  

   

FROM: April L. Raffel, Commission Clerk 

    

SUBJECT: January 12th Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

The Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) will consider draft minutes prepared 

for the meeting held on January 12, 2023. The minutes are in action‐form and being presented for 

formal Commission approval. 

 

Background 

 

The Ralph M. Brown Act was enacted by the State Legislature in 1953 and – among other items – 

requires public agencies to maintain written minutes for qualifying meetings. 

 

Discussion 

 

This item is for Alameda LAFCO to consider approving action minutes for the January 12, 2023, 

regular meeting. The attendance record for the meeting follows. 

 

• All Commissioners were present.   

 

Alternatives for Action  

 

The following alternatives are available to the Commission:  

 

Alternative One (Recommended):  

Approve the draft minutes prepared for Alameda LAFCO’s January 12, 2023, regular meeting   

(Attachment 1) with any desired corrections or clarifications.  

 

Alternative Two: 

Continue consideration of the report to a future meeting and provide direction to staff as needed. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4



Alameda LAFCO 
March 9, 2023 Regular Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 3a 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

2 | P a g e  

 

Recommendation  

 

It is recommended the Commission proceed with Alternative Action One.  

 

 

Procedures 

 

This item has been placed on Alameda LAFCO’s agenda as part of the consent calendar. A 

successful motion to approve the consent calendar will include taking affirmative action on the 

staff recommendation as provided unless otherwise specified by the Commission. 

 

 

Respectfully,  

 

 

 

April L. Raffel 

Commission Clerk 

  

 

Attachments: 

1. Draft Meeting Minutes for January 12, 2023, Regular Meeting 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5



Blank for Photocopying 

6



Alameda LAFCO 
Approved Minutes | January 12, 2023 

1 | Page 

SUMMARY ACTION MINUTES 

ALAMEDA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

JANUARY 12, 2023, REGULAR MEETING 

1. CALL TO ORDER | ROLL CALL

The regular meeting was called to order at 2:00 p.m. by Chair Sblendorio.

The Commission Clerk performed the roll call with the following attendance recorded.

Regulars Present:  Karla Brown, City of Pleasanton 

David Haubert, County of Alameda 

Melissa Hernandez, City of Dublin 

Ralph Johnson, Castro Valley Sanitary District 

Nathan Miley, County of Alameda  

Sblend Sblendorio, Public (CHAIR)  

Alternates Present: Georgean Vonheeder-Leopold, Dublin San Ramon Services District 

(voting) 

John Marchand, City of Livermore 

Members Absent: None 

The Commission Clerk confirmed a quorum was present with seven voting members. Also, present 

at the meeting were Executive Officer Rachel Jones, Commission Counsel Andrew Massey, and 

Commission Clerk April Raffel. 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT:

Chair Sblendorio invited anyone from the public to address the Commission on any matter not listed

on the agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Commission.

The Commission Clerk confirmed there was one public comment to address the Commission.  A

comment was received from the following person:

- Kelly Abreau

3. RECOGNITION OF DEDICATED SERVICE

The Commission recognized Commissioner John Marchand for his distinguished and remarkable

service to Alameda LAFCO.

4. CONSENT ITEMS

Item 4a

Approval Meeting Minutes for November 10, 2022

Item presented to approve draft action minutes prepared for the Commission’s November 10, 2022,

regular meeting.  Recommendation to approve.

Attachment 1

7



Alameda LAFCO 
Approved Minutes | January 12, 2023 

2 | Page 

 

 

Item 4b 

Approval of Resolution to Continue Virtual Meetings due to COVID-19 Pandemic 
Item presented to consider a resolution authorizing LAFCO to conduct virtual meetings for the  

Commission for the next 30-day period as allowed under AB361, as circumstances warrant. 

Recommendation to approve.  

 

Item 4c 
Approval of Proposed Contract Amendment with Lamphier-Gregory for SLVAP Study 

Item presented to consider approval of Proposed Contract Amendment with Lamphier-

Gregory for SLVAP Study. Recommendation to approve. 

 

Item 4d 

Approval of Second Quarter Budget Report for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 

Item presented to accept and file a Second Quarterly Budget Report for 2022-2023. 

Recommendation to approve. 

 

Chair Sblendorio asked if any Commissioner would like to pull any consent agenda item. No 

Commissioners wanted to pull any item from the consent agenda.  

 

Chair Sblendorio invited public comments.  

 

The Commission Clerk confirmed there were no public comments. 

 

Chair Sblendorio proceeded to close the public hearing.  

 

Commissioner Brown motioned to approve the consent calendar with a second from Alternate 

Commissioner Vonheeder-Leopold.  Roll call requested: 

 

AYES: Brown, Haubert, Hernandez, Johnson, Miley, Sblendorio, Vonheeder-Leopold (voting 

for Special District) 

NOES: None 

ABSENT: None 

ABSTAIN: None 

 

 The Commission Clerk confirmed the motion was approved 7-0.  

   

5. Establish Ad Hoc Public Member Selection Committee – (Business)  

Item presented to consider directing the Chair to establish an Ad Hoc Selection Committee for its 

Alternate Public Member Seat that is currently vacant. 

 

Executive Officer Jones added that we need to have a city, county, and special district member on the Ad 

Hoc Selection Committee in step with Alternate Public Member Selection Procedures.   

 

- The Commission appointed City Member Marchand, County Member Haubert, and Special District 

Member Johnson to the Ad Hoc Public Member Selection Committee. 

 

Chair Sblendorio invited public comments. 

 

The Commission Clerk confirmed there was one public comment to address the Commission.  A 

comment was received from the following person:  

 

- Kelly Abreau 

8



Alameda LAFCO 
Approved Minutes | January 12, 2023 

3 | Page 

 

 

 

Chair Sblendorio proceeded to close the public hearing.  

 

Alternate Commissioner Vonheeder-Leopold motioned with a second from Commissioner Brown to 

approve the Ad Hoc Public Member Selection Committee.  Roll call requested: 

 

AYES: Brown, Haubert, Hernandez, Johnson, Miley, Sblendorio, Vonheeder-Leopold (voting 

for Special District) 

NOES: None 

ABSENT: None 

ABSTAIN: None 

  

The Commission Clerk confirmed the motion was approved 7-0. 

 

6. Brown Act Procedures for Remote Meetings – (Business)   

Item presented to consider receiving a memorandum from Commission Counsel on approved 

amendments to the Brown Act and allowances therein to conduct remote meetings beginning  

March 1, 2023. The item is being presented for Commission discussion with the opportunity to 

provide feedback on related implementation measures.  

 

Executive Officer Jones provided the formal staff presentation for Commission discussion and 

feedback regarding the new teleconference options for remote meetings.  

 

- This item is for Alameda LAFCO to review a memorandum from Commission Counsel on 

Senate Bill 2449 and its allowances for governing bodies to hold remote meetings starting 

March 2023. The traditional teleconference provisions in the Brown Act, as amended by Senate 

Bill 2449, only allow individual members of governing bodies to appear remotely on a limited 

basis due to unforeseen circumstances.  

 

- A member is only allowed to teleconference twice per calendar year if the legislative body holds 

less than ten meetings per year. A quorum of the legislative body must also exist in person at 

the designated meeting location.  

 

- The Commission’s next special meeting, the strategic planning workshop, scheduled for 

February 10th, and March 9th regular meeting will both be held at Dublin San Ramon Services 

District. The district is not following SB 2449’s guidelines and will adhere to the traditional 

guidelines of the Brown Act for public meetings.  

 

- The staff has requested meeting space at the City of Dublin’s Council Chambers for the 

Commission’s May 11th regular meeting. The Council Chambers are equipped for hybrid 

meetings. 

 

Chair Sblendorio invited Commission discussion.  Commission discussion followed. Chair 

Sblendorio encouraged the Commission to attend the February 10th Strategic Planning Meeting in 

person to get more out of it together.   

 

Chair Sblendorio invited public comments. 

 

The Commission Clerk confirmed there were no public comments. 

 

Chair Sblendorio proceeded to close the public hearing.   

9



Alameda LAFCO 
Approved Minutes | January 12, 2023 

4 | Page 

 

 

  

 

7. MATTERS INITIATED BY MEMBERS OF THE COMMISSION 

- Chair Sblendorio mentioned at the next March 9th meeting we will select a Vice Chair, which 

may be a regular City Member, Commissioner Hernandez, or Commissioner Brown. 

 

8. EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT  

Executive Officer Jones reported the Ad Hoc Measure D Committee received some feedback from 

the agriculture community requesting an outline specification for why certain parcels are marked as 

Resource Management rather than Large Parcel Agriculture.  Staff recommended that the Ad Hoc 

Measure D committee convene and figure out why the specification was used, what is the criteria, and 

give a recommendation to the county on how to move forward.  Executive Officer Jones will be 

sending out an invitation to meet and discuss this criterion within the next couple of weeks.  Since we 

currently have two of the three original members on the Ad Hoc Measure D Committee, we needed 

to replace former Commissioner Woerner’s vacancy.  Commission Counsel mentioned the 

Commission could replace the vacancy in accordance with the Brown Act.  The Commission replaced 

the vacancy with Chair Sblendorio, a public member, to the Ad Hoc Committee to balance the existing 

members, Alternate Commissioner Marchand, city member; and Commissioner Haubert, county 

member.   

 

Chair Sblendorio invited public comments. 

 

The Commission Clerk confirmed there was one public comment to address the Commission.  A 

comment was received from the following person:  

 

- Kelly Abreau 

 

Chair Sblendorio proceeded to close the public hearing.  

 

9. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

a. Current and Pending Proposals 

b. Progress Report on Work Plan 

c. CALAFCO Quarterly Report 

d. Form 700: Due April 1 

 

10. ADJOURNMENT OF REGULAR MEETING 

 

Chair Sblendorio adjourned the meeting at 2:42 p.m.  

  

 

Next Meetings of the Commission 

 

Policy and Budget Committee Meeting  

Thursday, February 2, 2023, at 2:00 p.m., City of Dublin, Regional Meeting Room 

Regular Meeting 

Thursday, March 9, 2023, at 2:00 p.m., Dublin San Ramon Services District Boardroom 

 

Strategic Planning Workshop 

Friday, February 10, 2023, at 9:00 a.m., Dublin San Ramon Services District Boardroom 

 

– Staff is looking into hosting a hybrid meeting City of Dublin’s Council Chambers 

10



Alameda LAFCO 
Approved Minutes | January 12, 2023 

5 | Page 

 

 

 

I hereby attest the minutes above accurately reflect the Commission’s deliberations at its 

January 12, 2023 videoconference meeting. 

 

ATTEST, 

 
April L. Raffel 

Commission Clerk

11



Blank for Photocopying 

12



     
  

 
 

LAFCO 
Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission   
 

 

Administrative Office 
Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
224 West Winton Avenue, Suite 110 
Hayward, California 94544 
T:  510.670.6267 
www.alamedalafco.org 

Karla Brown, Regular 
City of Pleasanton 
 
Melissa Hernandez, Reg 
City of Dublin  
 
John Marchand, Alternate  
City of Livermore 
 

Ralph Johnson, Regular  
Castro Valley Sanitary District 
 
Vacant, Regular  
Special District Member 
 
Georgean Vonheeder-Leopold, Alternate 
Dublin San Ramon Services District 

 

Sblend Sblendorio, Chair 
Public Member  
 
Vacant, Alternate 
Public Member 

 

Nate Miley, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
David Haubert, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Vacant, Alternate 
County of Alameda  
 

 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

March 9, 2023   

Item No. 3b 

 

TO:  Alameda Commissioners  
   

FROM: Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Proposed Contract Amendment |  

Alameda County Resource Conservation District 
 

 

The Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) will consider approving a proposed 

contract amendment for the agricultural planning grant with the Department of Conservation and its 

Sustainable Agricultural Lands Conservation (SALC) Program in partnership with the Alameda 

County Resource Conservation District (ACRCD). The amendment seeks to extend the contract period 

by twelve months. Staff recommends approval. 

 

Background 

 

Alameda LAFCO was awarded the SALC grant in partnership with ACRCD for a total of $250,000 in 

November 2022. At its March 11, 2021 regular meeting, the Commission approved a contract with 

ACRCD for the SALC agricultural planning grant. ACRCD would serve as project manager and assist 

in coordination and implementation among participants. Alameda LAFCO would be responsible in 

administering and allocating grant funds. 

 

The project has a two-year timeline with the expected completion date for December of 2023. The 

project’s purpose is to identify, map, and monitor high-priority parcels of agricultural lands within 

proximity to urban growth boundaries of cities and unincorporated areas within the County of 

Alameda, along with identifying priority sites for additional urban agricultural community gardens for 

disadvantaged low-income and or unincorporated communities. The project will enable and promote 

existing programs as well as allow transparency among the stakeholders on who is doing what for 

better coordination and collaboration to better support and improve strategies within the region. 

Alameda LAFCO will assist in creating a repository of agricultural and open space use policies from 

stakeholders throughout the County, while ACRCD will implement and manage the project’s priority 

sites.  

 

A brief overview of the project tasks and timeline is as follows: 

 

▪ Task 1. Establishment of Stakeholder Group (4 months) 

Identify Stakeholders and conduct meetings to identify Stakeholder concerns.  

 

13



Alameda LAFCO 
March 9, 2023 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 3b 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

2 | P a g e  

 

▪ Task 2. Stakeholder Planning Process (14 months) 

With Stakeholder participation, develop a comprehensive analysis of existing regulatory 

policies and suggest strategies to account for policy gaps, inconsistencies, overlap and 

redundancies, as they relate to sustainable agricultural lands conservation in Alameda 

County.  

 

▪ Task 3. Create prioritization criteria to rank agricultural land parcels for preservation 

precedence (3 months) 

Research and gather current sources of information to develop ranking criteria needed to 

update inventories of (1) lands at risk of conversion from agricultural land use to more 

intensive GHG-emitting land-use practices, as well as of (2) lands that are protected.  

 

▪ Task 4. Create a draft map of relevant layers for land prioritization (3 months) 

Based on efforts in Task 3 and subtasks below, comprehensive priority draft maps will be 

developed. 

 

▪ Task 5. Community Outreach (3 months) 

Plan, prepare for and conduct meetings with community groups to share ranking and 

incentive structures. 

 

▪ Task 6. Completion of final maps (2 months) 

Create and present final maps at Board of Supervisors Meetings. 

 

▪ Task 7. Final Plan Development and Review (6 months) 

Finalize summary of plan and policy recommendations and distribute to stakeholders and 

relevant State agencies.  

 

▪ Task 8. Administration (24 months) 

Grant administration (e.g., invoicing, invoice review, and document signing). 

 

Task 1 (Establishment of Stakeholder Group) and Task 2 (Stakeholder Planning Process) took 

substantial coordination efforts that included the hiring of additional consultants. As a result of the 

delays with completing these two tasks, a first amendment is proposed to extend the contract for an 

additional twelve-month period with an expiration date of March 15, 2024. The contract amount in the 

proposed second agreement would not increase and remain at the same-not-to-exceed cost of $250,000. 

 

Discussion 

 

This item is for the Commission to consider approving the proposed contract amendment with ACRCD 

to extend the contract of its SALC planning grant project for an additional twelve-month period.   

 

14



Alameda LAFCO 
March 9, 2023 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 3b 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

3 | P a g e  

 

Alternatives for Action  

 

The following alternatives are available to the Commission:  

 

Alternative One (Recommended):  

Approve the contract amendment with ACRCD for the SALC Planning grant project as shown in 

Attachment 1.  

 

Alternative Two: 

Continue consideration of the item to a future meeting and provide direction to staff as needed. 

 

Alternative Three: 

Deny the contract amendment.  

 

Recommendation 

 

It is recommended the Commission proceed with Alternative Action One. 
 
 

Procedures 

 

This item has been placed on Alameda LAFCO’s agenda as part of the consent calendar. A 

successful motion to approve the consent calendar will include taking affirmative action on the 

staff recommendation as provided unless otherwise specified by the Commission. 

 
Respectfully,  

 
Rachel Jones 
Executive Officer 
 
 
Attachments:  

1. Proposed Contract Amendment with ACRCD – First Amendment  
2. Contract Agreement with ACRCD  

 

 

15



Blank for Photocopying 

16



Procurement Contract No. **** 

Page 1 of 2 

CONTRACT EXTENSION 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT 

Reference is made to the contract entered into on the 15th March of 2021 by and between the 

Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) and Alameda County Resource 

Conservation District (ACRCD) (“Contractor”) (“the Agreement’). 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Agreement, the CONTRACT PERIOD is from March 15, 2021 through 

March 14, 2023. This Agreement may be extended for an additional twelve-month period, if mutually 

agreed by both parties. 

For valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, LAFCO 

and ACRCD agree to amend the Agreement in the following respects: 

1. The term of the Agreement is currently scheduled to expire on March 14, 2023.  The parties

mutually agree that more time is necessary to complete the project including public

meetings. Therefore, the parties mutually agree to extend the current term for twelve

additional months from the current end date of March 15, 2023.

2. The term of the Agreement is extended from March 15, 2021 through March 14, 2023

to March 15, 2021 through March 15, 2024.

3. There is no change in the Agreement amount of not to exceed $250,000, and any current

balance will continue through this Amendment.

4. Except as specifically and expressly modified by this amendment, all of the terms and

conditions of the Agreement are and remain in full force and effect. This amendment is

effective March 9, 2023.

Attachment 1

17



Procurement Contract No. **** 
 

Page 2 of 2 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment to the 

Agreement as of the day and year first above written. 

 

 

ALAMEDA LAFCO  Alameda County Resource Conservation 

District  

 

 

 

By:______________________________ 

Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 

Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission 

  

 

 

By:_____________________________ 

Signature 

   

 

Name:__________________________ 

(Printed) 

   

Title:___________________________ 

 

   

Date:___________________________ 

 

 

Approved as to Form: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

By:________________________________ 

Andrew Massey, LAFCo Counsel  

 By signing above, signatory warrants and 

represents that he/she executed this 

Agreement in his/her authorized capacity and 

that by his/her signature on this Agreement, 

he/she or the entity upon behalf of which 

he/she acted, executed this Agreement 

 
 

 

 

 

 

18



Page I of 19 

P .0./C ontract # 
����������-

ALAMEDA LAFCO, ALAMEDA COUNTY, STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
STANDARD AGREEMENT 

TH IS AGRE EMENT, made and entered Into this 15th day of M arch, 2021 by and between the 
ALAMEDA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMM ISSION, a public agency of the State of 
California. hereafter called the "Alameda LAFCO", and Alameda County Resource Conseivation 
District, a California special district duly qualified In the State of Callfornla, whose principal place 
of business is: 3585 Greenville Road, Suite 2, Livermore, CA 94550, hereafter called the 
"Contractor." 

WIT NESSETH 

WHEREAS, the Alameda LAFCo desires to use professional services to administer and 
complete a grant project awarded by the Department of Conservation as described in E xhibit A 
attached hereto ("Scope of Work"); and 

WHEREAS. Contractor is professionally qualified to provide such services; and 

WHEREAS, the Alameda LAFCo desires to retain and employ the services of Contractor 
in connection with such work, and Contractor is agreeable with such employment. 

NOW, THEREFORE, it fs agreed that the Alameda LAFCo does hereby retain and employ 
Contractor to provide the Services In connection with such work, and Contractor accepts such 
employment, on the terms and conditions hereinafter specified in this AgresmEmt and additional 
provisions attached hereto, and the following described exhibits, all of which are incorporated 
Into this Agreement by this reference: 

Exhibit A 
Exhibit A .. 1 

Exhibit B 
ExhibitC 

Scope of Services & Project Tlmellne 
Grant Agreement between Alameda LAFCo and the State of California 
Department of Conservation (Grant Agreement No. 3020 .. 901) 
Payment T-erms 
Insurance Requirements 

CONTRACT PERIOD wil be from date executed through March 14, 2023. This Agreement 
may be extended for an additional six months if mutually agreed by both parties hereto, In 
writing not less than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of this Agreement. 

COMPENSAT ION: The Alameda LAFCo agrees to pay Contractor, pursuant to the terms set 
forth In Exhibit B, for services performed hereundei In a total amount not to exceed $249,988 for 
the term of the current agreement, Including all expenses, contingencies, and other 
miscellaneous expenses. 

ADDITIO NAL PROVISIONS, pages 3 through 18, attached hereto constitute a part ·of this 
agreement. 

Attachment 2

19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



Blank for Photocopying 

70



     
  

 
 

LAFCO 
Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission   
 

 

Administrative Office 
Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
224 West Winton Avenue, Suite 110 
Hayward, California 94544 
T:  510.670.6267 
www.alamedalafco.org 

Karla Brown, Regular 
City of Pleasanton 
 
Melissa Hernandez, Reg 
City of Dublin  
 
John Marchand, Alternate  
City of Livermore 
 

Ralph Johnson, Regular  
Castro Valley Sanitary District 
 
Vacant, Regular  
Special District Member 
 
Georgean Vonheeder-Leopold, Alternate 
Dublin San Ramon Services District 

 

Sblend Sblendorio, Chair 
Public Member  
 
Vacant, Alternate 
Public Member 

 

Nate Miley, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
David Haubert, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Vacant, Alternate 
County of Alameda  
 

 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

March 9, 2023  

Item No. 3c 
TO:  Alameda  Commissioners  
   

FROM: Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Budget Update for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 | Quarterly Report 
 

 

The Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) will review a report comparing 

budgeted to actual transactions for fiscal year 2022-2023. Actual expenses processed through the first 

eight months totaled $363,409, an amount representing 48.7% of the budgeted total with two-thirds of 

the fiscal year complete. The report is being presented to the Commission to accept, file, and provide 

direction to staff as needed. 

 

Information  

 

Alameda LAFCO’s adopted final budget for 2022-2023 totals $746,429. This amount represents the 

total approved operating expenditures for the fiscal year divided between three active expense units: 

salaries and benefits; services and supplies; and internal services. A matching revenue total was also 

budgeted to provide a balanced budget and with a purposeful aid of a planned $250,000 transfer from 

reserves. Budgeted revenues are divided amongst three active units: intergovernmental contributions, 

application fees, and investments.  

 

Discussion 
 

This item is for the Commission to receive an updated comparison of (a) budgeted to (b) actual 

expenses and revenues through the month of February. The report provides the Commission the 

opportunity to track expenditure trends accompanied by year-end operating balance projections from 

the Executive Officer. The report is being presented to the Commission to formally accept, file, and 

provide related direction to staff as needed.  
 

 

          
          

Budgeted Expenses    Budgeted Revenues   Budgeted Year End Balance 

FY 22-23   FY 22-23   FY 22-23 

       

$746,428    $746,429    $1  

 

 

 

 

71



Alameda LAFCO 
March 9, 2023 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 3c 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

2 | P a g e  

 

Summary of Operating Expenses 
 

The Commission’s budgeted operating expense total for 2022-2023 is $746,428. Actual expenses 

processed through the first eight months totaled $363,409, an amount representing 48.7% of the 

budgeted total with two-thirds of the fiscal year complete. Actuals through the first eight months and 

related analysis suggest the Commission is ahead to finish the fiscal year with a balanced budget. A 

discussion on budgeted and actual expenses through the first eight months and related year-end 

projections follow. 

 

Expense Units   Adopted    Actuals Percent Expended Remaining Balance 

              

Salaries and Benefits  400,491  265,155 66% 135,336 

 
Services and Supplies 

 
215,987 

  
85,411 

 
40% 

 
130,576 

 
Internal Service Charges 

  
79,950 

 
12,843 

 
16% 

 
67,107 

 
Contingencies 

 
50,000 

 
0 

 
0% 

 
50,000 

    $746,428   $363,409 49% $383,019 

 

Staffing Unit  
 

The Commission budgeted $400,491 in the Staffing or Salaries and Benefits Unit for 2022-2023. 

Through the first eight months, the Commission’s estimated expenses within the affected accounts 

totaled $265,155 or 66% of the budgeted amount. It is projected the Commission will finish the fiscal 

year with actuals equal to the budgeted amount. 

 

Services and Supplies Unit 
 

The Commission budgeted $215,987 in the Services and Supplies Unit for 2022-2023 to provide 

funding for direct support services necessary to operate Alameda LAFCO. Through the first eight 

months, the Commission’s actual expenses within the affected 14 accounts totaled $85,411, or 39.5% 

of the budgeted amount. Only two of the affected accounts – finished with balances exceeding the 

proportional 66% threshold, with explanations provided below.  

 

▪ Memberships 

This account covers the Commission’s annual dues for ongoing membership with several 

outside agencies and organizations as previously authorized by the members. This includes 

CALAFCO and the California Special Districts Association memberships. The Commission 

budgeted $11,287 in this account for 2022-2023 based on recent trends. Actual expenses 

through February totaled $11,287 or 100% of the budgeted amount, and were tied to providing 

full payment of all budgeted costs. Staff projects no additional expenses to this account.  

 

 

72



Alameda LAFCO 
March 9, 2023 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 3c 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

3 | P a g e  

 

▪ Mileage/Travel 

This account covers the Commission’s traveling and mileage costs. The Commission budgeted 

$600 in this account for 2022-2023 based on limited traveling due to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

Actual expenses through February totaled $4,389 and can be attributed to hotel and airline costs 

for the 2022 CALAFCO Annual Conference held in Newport Beach in October. Staff projects 

additional costs of approximately $2,500 attributed to CALAFCO’s staff workshop to be held 

in Spring 2023 and other CALAFCO University programs over the succeeding months.   

Internal Services and Supplies 
 

The Commission budgeted $79,950 in the Internal Services and Supplies Unit for 2022-2023 to provide 

funding for indirect support services necessary to operate Alameda LAFCO. Through the first eight 

months the Commission’s actual expenses within the four affected accounts totaled $12,843, or 16.1% 

of the budgeted amount. None of the affected accounts finished with balances exceeding the 

proportional 66% threshold, and staff estimates the unit to finish the fiscal year with a balanced budget.   

 

Summary of Operating Revenues 
 

The Commission budgeted operating revenue total for 2022-2023 at $746,429. Actual revenues 

collected through the first eight months totaled $376,745. This amount represents 82% of the budgeted 

total with two-thirds of the fiscal year complete. A summary comparison of budgeted to actual 

operating revenue follows.   
 

 

Revenue Units   Adopted    Actuals 
Percent 

Expended 
Remaining Balance 

              

Agency Contributions  459,429  376,745 82% 82,684 

Application Fees   
30,000 

 0 0% 30,000 

SALC Grant Funds  -  21,350                         - - 

Interest  7,000  
5,894 84% 1,106 

Fund Balance Offset 
 

250,000 
 

0 0% 250,000 

    $746,429   $403,989 54% $342,440 

 

Agency Apportionments 
 

The Commission budgeted $459,429 in the Agency Apportionments Unit for 2022-2023. This total 

budgeted amount was to be divided into three equal shares at $153,143 and invoiced among the County 

of Alameda, 14 cities, and 15 independent special districts as provided under State statute.  

 

Alameda LAFCO is still awaiting payment from the City of Oakland. 

 

 

 

 

73



Alameda LAFCO 
March 9, 2023 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 3c 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

4 | P a g e  

 

The following special districts have also not yet provided payments to LAFCO: City of Alameda 

Healthcare District, Dublin San Ramon Services District, and Washington Township District. 

 

If payment is not received by the aforementioned agencies before May 1st, LAFCO staff  will request 

the Commission at its next regular meeting to authorize the Executive Officer to initiate Government 

Code 56831(c) process to request the County Auditor collect an equivalent amount from property tax, 

or any fee eligible for revenue owed to the county, city, or district.  

 

Application Fees Unit 
 

The Commission budgeted $30,000 in the Application Fees Unit for 2022-2023. Through the first eight 

months, no monies have been collected in this unit.  

 

Interest Unit  
 

The Commission budgeted $7,000 in the Interest Unit for 2022-2023. Through the first eight months, 

$5,894 have been collected in this unit by the County Treasurer.  

 

Alternatives for Action  

 

The following alternatives are available to the Commission:  

 

Alternative One (Recommended):  

Accept and file the report as presented and provide direction as needed to staff with respect to any 

related matters for future consideration.  

 

Alternative Two:  

Continue consideration of the report to a future meeting and provide direction to staff as needed. 

 

Alternative Three:  

Take no action. 

 

Recommendation 

 

It is recommended the Commission proceed with Alternative Action One.  

 

Procedures 

 

This item has been placed on Alameda LAFCO’s agenda as part of the consent calendar. A 

successful motion to approve the consent calendar will include taking affirmative action on the 

staff recommendation as provided unless otherwise specified by the Commission. 

 
 

74



Alameda LAFCO 
March 9, 2023 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 3c 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

5 | P a g e  

 

Respectfully,  

 
Rachel Jones 
Executive Officer 
  

Attachments: 

1. 2022-2023 General Ledger through February 28, 2023 

 

 

75



Blank for Photocopying 

76



z

Expense Ledger FY 2019-2020 FY 2020-2021 FY 2021-2022

Adopted Actuals Adopted Actuals Adopted Actuals Adopted Actuals Difference Percent of Budget

As of 02-28-23

Salary and Benefit Costs 

Account Description 

60001 Staff Salaries 308,307 263,373 234,254 172,085 250,564 250,564 275,933 182,947 (92,986) 66.3%

-

Employee Benefits and Retirement

(ACERA) 175,275 149,961 122,903 88,649 123,411 123,411 124,558 82,208 (42,350) 66.0%

483,581 324,575 357,157 260,735 373,975 373,975 400,491 265,155 (135,336) 66.2%

Service and Supplies

Account Description 

- Intern 1,600 - 1,600 - - - - - - -

610077 Postage 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 500 - 500 - - -

610141 Copier 3,000 3,000 3,000 - 1,000 - 500 - - -

610191 Pier Diems 7,800 7,800 8,000 7,100 8,500 5,600 7,500 3,475 (4,025) 46.3%

610211 Mileage/Travel 1,300 1,300 1,300 - 500 373 600 4,389 3,789 731.4%

610461 Training (Conferences and Workshops) 13,000 6,000 5,000 - 2,500
-

2,500
-

- -

610241 Records Retention 1,000 1,000 1,000 303 350 210 350 (350) 0.0%

610261 Consultants 90,000 90,000 96,000 42,527 100,000 152,709 150,000 66,000 (84,000) 44.0%

610261 Mapping - County 5,000 5,000 5,000 - 500 - - - - -

610261 Planning Services 5,000 6,000 5,000 - 5,000 - 5,000 - - -

610261 Legal Services 30,000 21,775 25,000 - 20,000 - 20,000 - - -

610261 SALC Grant Charges - - - - 72,404 - -

610311 CAO/CDA - County - Services 11,000 11,000 1,000 7,700 1,000 - 1,000 - - -

610312 Audit Services 7,700 10,000 10,000 - 10,000 - 10,000 - - -

610351 Memberships 10,476 10,476 10,762 10,662 10,760 10,760 11,287 11,287 - 100.0%

610421 Public Notices 5,000 5,000 5,000 2,149 3,000 2,453 2,000 - - -

610441 Assessor - County - Services 2,500 2,500 2,500 - 500 - 250 - - -

610461 Special Departmental 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,000 1,500 233 1,500 233 (1,267) 15.5%

620041 Office Supplies 4,000 4,000 4,000 916 4,000 28 3,000 28 - -

200,876 187,351 186,662 73,357 269,610 Amended 244,769 215,987 85,411 (130,576) 39.5%

Internal Service Charges

Account Description 

630051 Office Lease/Rent 25,000 35,000 32,500 32,500 32,500 32,500 50,550 1,869 (48,681) 3.7%

630021 Communication Services 3,950 3,950 100 - 100 - 100 - - -

630061 Information Technology 27,373 27,373 27,373 25,870 25,870 27,938 26,000 10,974 (15,026) 42.2%

630081 Risk Management 3,100 3,100 3,100 3,280 3,280 3,280 3,300 - - -

59,423 69,423 63,073 61,650 61,750 63,718 79,950 12,843 (67,107) 16.1%

Contingencies 50,000 - 50,000 - 50,000 - 50,000 - -

Account Description 

- Operating Reserve - - - - - - - - - -

- - - - - - - - - -

655,335 Adopted

EXPENSE TOTALS 793,880 581,349 656,892 395,742 755,335 Amended 682,462 746,428 363,409 (383,019) 48.7%

FY2022-2023

ALAMEDA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISION
Regional Service Planning | Subdivision of the State of California 

Attachment 1

77



Revenue Ledger FY2019-2020 FY2020-2021 FY2021-2022

Adopted Actuals Adopted Actuals Adopted Actuals Adopted Actuals Difference Percent of Budget

As of 02-28-23

Intergovernmental 

Account Description

- Agency Contributions 

    County of Alameda 192,127                192,127              146,630                146,631              144,445                144,445              153,143 153,143 -                   100.0%

     Cities 192,127                192,127              146,630                146,631              144,445                144,445              153,143 79,710 (73,433)             52.0%

     Special Districts 192,127                192,127              146,630                146,631              144,445                138,943              153,143 143,892 (9,251)               94.0%

576,380                576,380             439,891                439,891             433,335                427,833             459,429 376,745 (82,684)            82.0%

Service Charges

- Application Fees 30,000                  25,000               30,000                  38,643               30,000                  6,434                 30,000 (30,000)             0.0%

- SALC Grant Funds 100,000                Amended 72,404               21,350

Investments

- Interest 7,500                   7,500                 7,000                   8,965                 7,000                   5,765                 7,000 5,894 (1,106)              84.2%

Fund Balance Offset 180,000                -                    180,000                -                    185,000                185,000             250,000 - -

655,335                Adopted

REVENUE TOTALS 793,880                608,880             656,891                487,499             755,335                Amended 697,436             746,429 403,989 (342,440)          54.1%

OPERATING NET -                       27,531                (1)                         91,757                -                       14,974                1                        40,580 - -

UNRESTRICTED FUND BALANCE 1,061,570 1,153,327 883,301

   As of June 30th

FY2022-2023

78



     
  

 
 

LAFCO 
Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission   
 

 

Administrative Office 
Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
224 West Winton Avenue, Suite 110 
Hayward, California 94544 
T:  510.670.6267 
www.alamedalafco.org 

Karla Brown, Regular 
City of Pleasanton 
 
Melissa Hernandez, Reg 
City of Dublin  
 
John Marchand, Alternate  
City of Livermore 
 

Ralph Johnson, Regular  
Castro Valley Sanitary District 
 
Vacant, Regular  
Special District Member 
 
Georgean Vonheeder-Leopold, Alternate 
Dublin San Ramon Services District 

 

Sblend Sblendorio, Chair 
Public Member  
 
Vacant, Alternate 
Public Member 

 

Nate Miley, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
David Haubert, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Vacant, Alternate 
County of Alameda  
 

 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

March 9, 2023  

Item No. 4 
TO:  Alameda  Commissioners  
   

FROM: Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Draft Operating Budget and Workplan for FY 2023-2024  
 

 

The Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) will consider adopting a draft budget 

and workplan for fiscal year 2023-2024 in anticipation of taking final action at its next regular meeting. 

Proposed budget expenses total $784,740, representing an increase of $38,312 or 5.1% from the current 

fiscal year. The increase is marked by expenses for professional services in the Service and Supplies 

Unit for additional LAFCO studies, and a rise in membership and travel costs. Proposed budget 

revenues are matched to expenses with an increase in agency contributions by $23,310, or 5.1%, in 

step with a fund balance offset of $265,000, applied in the same manner as the previous fiscal year 

with a $15,000 increase in total amount. Adoption will precede a formal public review and comment 

period, and conclude with final action taken at the next regular meeting scheduled for May 11, 2023.  

 

Background 

 

Alameda LAFCO is responsible under State law to adopt a proposed budget by May 1st and a final 

budget by June 15th. A mandatory review by all local funding agencies is required between the two 

adoption periods. Alameda LAFCO’s (“Commission”) annual operating costs are primarily funded by 

proceeds collected from 29 local public agencies operating within Alameda County. State law specifies 

the Commission’s operating costs shall be divided in one-third increments between the (a) County of 

Alameda, (b) 14 cities, and (c) 15 independent special districts with the latter two categories 

apportioned based on total revenues as provided in the most recent annual report published by the State 

Controller’s Office. A relatively small portion, typically representing less than one-tenth of total 

revenues, is also funded from application fees and interest earnings.  

 

Adopted 2022-2023 Budget 

 

The Commission’s adopted final budget for fiscal year 2022-2023 totals $746,429. This amount 

represents the total approved operating expenditures divided between three active expenses units: 

salaries and benefits; services and supplies; and internal service charges. A matching revenue total was 

also budgeted to provide a balanced budget along with the purposeful transfer of $250,000 from 

reserves. Budgeted revenues are divided between three active units: agency contributions, application 

fees; and interest earnings. The total unaudited fund balance as of July 1, 2022 was $883,301.  

 

 

79



Alameda LAFCO 
March 9, 2023 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 4 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

2 | P a g e  

 

              
              

Budgeted Expenses    Budgeted Revenues   
Budgeted Year End 
Balance   Fund Balance 

FY 22-23   FY 22-23   FY 22-23   FY 22-23 

          
$746,428    $746,429   $1    $883,301  

 

Discussion 

 

This item is for the Commission to consider adopting a proposed (a) operating budget and (b) workplan 

for the upcoming fiscal year. Adoption of these documents would immediately precede a formal public 

review and comment period, including providing copies of the proposed budget to the 29 local funding 

agencies, with final actions scheduled for the Commission’s May 11th regular meeting. A summary of 

the proposed budget and accompanying work plan follows.  

 

Proposed Operating Budget for FY 2023-2024 

 
The proposed operating budget developed by the Executive Officer sets operating expenses at 

$784,740; a net increase of $38,312, or 5.1% from the current fiscal year. The operating expenses total, 

divided between labor and non-labor costs, are at an 54% to 40% split, with 6% dedicated to 

contingencies. Proposed operating revenues match operating expenses and is covered by drawing down 

reserves consistent with the practice to help offset and phase in sizable increases to agency 

contributions. The net effect would be an increase in contributions of $23,310 or 5.1% from $459,429 

to $482,739.  

 

 

57% 54%

27%
29%

8%
11%

8%
6%

0

100,000

200,000

300,000

400,000

500,000

600,000

700,000

800,000

900,000

2022 -2023 2023 -2024

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries and Benefits Services and Supplies Internal Service Charges Contingencies

80



Alameda LAFCO 
March 9, 2023 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 4 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

3 | P a g e  

 

Operating Expenses 

 
It is proposed the Salaries and Benefits Unit will increase by $24,028 or 6% over the next fiscal year 

from $400,491 to $424,519. The unit covers labor costs tied to staffing 2.0 full-time employees: 

Executive Officer and Commission Clerk. Notable adjustments proposed may be reviewed below. 

 
▪ Salary increases of no less than 6% are contemplated for all budgeted positions to 

accommodate merit and or cost of living adjustments that may be approved during the fiscal 
year.  

 

It is proposed the Services and Supplies Unit will increase by 13,284 or 6.2% over the next fiscal 

year from $215,987 to $229,271. The unit provides for direct support services necessary to operate 

Alameda LAFCO. Notable adjustments proposed may be reviewed below. 

 
▪ Adds $10,000 in the professional services account; a difference of 6.7% over the next fiscal 

year. The increase is based on the Commission’s work plan for additional municipal service 
reviews and special studies.  
 

▪ Adds $1,500 in the Commission pier diem account; a difference of 20% over the next fiscal 
year. The increase is based on the Commission’s stipend increase from $100 to $125 for all 
regular and ad hoc committee meetings.  
 

▪ Increases $500 in the public notices services account to increase the total line item from $2,000 
to $2,500; a difference of 25% over the next fiscal year. The increase is based on recent 
demands and future application notices.   
 

▪ Adds $600 in the mileage/travel services account; a difference of 100% over the next fiscal 
year. The increase is based on the end of the state of emergency of the COVID-19 pandemic 
and the regular program of CALAFCO conferences and staff workshops.  

 

It is proposed the Internal Service Charges Unit will increase by $1,000 or 1.3% over the next fiscal 

year from $79,950 to $80,950. The unit provides for indirect support services necessary to operate 

Alameda LAFCO. Notable adjustments proposed may be reviewed below. 

 

▪ Adds $1,000 from the information technology services account to increase the total line item 

from $26,000 to $27,000, a difference of 3.8% over the next fiscal year. The rise is attributable 

to service cost increases.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

81



Alameda LAFCO 
March 9, 2023 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 4 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

4 | P a g e  

 

Operating Revenues 

 
It is proposed the Intergovernmental Unit will increase by $23,310, or 5.1% over the next fiscal year 

from $459,429 to $482,739. The unit provides payments received from the 29 local government 

agencies responsible under State law for funding Alameda LAFCO with apportionments divided in 

three equal shares among the County of Alameda, 14 cities and 15 independent special districts. Actual 

invoice amounts for cities and special districts would be determined by the County Auditor’s Office 

consistent with the allocation formula outlined under Government Code Section 56383 and based on 

local revenue tallies.  

 

It is proposed the Service Charge Unit remain as is at $30,000. This unit covers payments received 

from outside applicants to process change of organizations (annexations, detachments, formations, 

etc.), outside service extensions, and sphere of influence amendments. 

 

It is proposed the Interest Earnings Unit will remain as is at $7,000. This total is consistent with 

recent quarters.  

 

Proposed Work Plan for FY 2023-2024 

 
The proposed work plan draws on a review of Alameda LAFCO’s needs and goals by the Executive 

Officer and ahead of receiving input and direction from the Commission. It outlines 20 specific projects 

divided between statutory (legislative directives) and administrative (discretionary) activities. The 

projects are listed in sequence by assigned priority between high, moderate, and low. The majority of 

the projects are rollover from this current fiscal year with several additional items. A summary of 

notable high-priority projects follows. 

 

Community Services Municipal Service Review 

The project involves a countywide study on agencies that provide community services such as street 

maintenance and lighting, parks and recreation, mosquito and vector abatement, and lead 

abatement in Alameda County. The MSR will also review broadband services and any accessibility 

issues within the region.  

 

Countywide Municipal Service Review on Police Protection Services 

This study will examine the current provision and need for police services and related financial and 

governance considerations in the County. The report will consider the potential needs in the 

unincorporated communities of Fairview, Cherryland, San Lorenzo and Castro Valley and include one  

special district and the municipal police departments of 14 cities. 

 

Comprehensive Tri-Valley Area Study 

This study will examine the current provision and need for governmental services and related financial 

and governance considerations along the eastern portion of the 580 corridor and anchored by 

Pleasanton, Dublin, and Livermore along with neighboring communities.  

82



Alameda LAFCO 
March 9, 2023 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 4 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

5 | P a g e  

 

It is also expected the study will consider potential needs or issues in outlying unincorporated areas, 

including Happy Valley and the Remen Tract. The study will be region-specific and will precede 

sphere updates for all of the affected agencies as deemed appropriate by the Commission. 

 
Conclusion 

 
The proposed operating budget and work plan affirmatively responds to the feedback provided by the 

Commission along with the functional needs in meeting the agency’s existing and expanding duties 

under State law. This includes advancing the Commission’s outreach and educational opportunities 

throughout the community and region, conducting municipal service reviews to inform spheres of 

influence updates, and creating stakeholder groups to determine growth management policies. The 

principal difference in the proposed budget is largely tied to the adjustments made in salaries and 

benefits and services and supplies units to account for cost-of-living adjustments and the demand for 

more professional services to conduct LAFCO special studies and MSRs.  

 

Alternatives for Action  

 

The following alternatives are available to the Commission:  
 

Alternative One (Recommended):  
Adopt the attached resolution approving the proposed budget and work plan for 2023-2024 with any 
desired changes; and 
 
Direct the Executive Officer to circulate the proposed budget for 2023-2024 for review and comment 
by the funding agencies and general public; and 

 
Direct staff to return with a final budget for 2023-2024 for adoption as part of a noticed public 
hearing on May 11, 2023.  
 
Alternative Two:  
Continue consideration of the item to a special meeting scheduled no later than the legislative deadline 
of May 1, 2023, and provide direction to staff with respect to any additional information requests.  
 
Recommendation 

 

It is recommended the Commission proceed with Alternative Action One.  
 

Procedures for Consideration 

 

This item has been placed on the agenda for action as part of a noticed public hearing. The following 
procedures are recommended for consideration.  
 

1) Receive a verbal report from staff; 
2) Invite questions from the Commission; 
3) Open the public hearing and invite comments from audience (mandatory); and 
4) Close the public hearing, discuss item, and consider recommendation.  

83



Alameda LAFCO 
March 9, 2023 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 4 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

6 | P a g e  

 

Respectfully,  

 
Rachel Jones 
Executive Officer 

  

Attachments: 
1. Draft Resolution Adopting the Proposed Budget and Work Plan for FY 2023-2024 
2. Proposed Budget for FY 2023-2024 

3. Proposed Work Plan for FY 2023-2024 

84



ALAMEDA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION OF THE 

ALAMEDA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

ADOPTING A PROPOSED WORK PLAN AND BUDGET  

FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 

WHEREAS, the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 

requires the Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (“Commission”) to perform certain 

regulatory and planning duties for purposes of facilitating efficient and accountable local 

government; and  

WHEREAS, the Commission is required to adopt proposed and final budgets each year by 

May 1st and June 15th, respectively; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission’s Executive Officer prepared a written report outlining 

recommendations with respect to anticipated work activities and budgetary needs in 2023-2024; 

and 

WHEREAS, the Commission has heard and fully considered all evidence on a proposed work 

plan and budget for 2023-2024 presented at a public hearing held on March 9, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, the adoption of a work plan and budget are not projects under the California 

Environmental Quality Act;  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE COMMISSION DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE 

AND ORDER as follows:  

1. The proposed operating budget for 2023-2024 shown as Exhibit A is APPROVED.

2. The proposed work plan for 2023-2024 shown as Exhibit B is APPROVED

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission on 

March 9, 2023 by the following vote: 

AYES:  

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

Attachment 1

85



APPROVED: ATTEST: 

__________________ __________________ 

Sblend Sblendorio  Rachel Jones 

Chair Executive Officer 

APPROVED TO FORM: 

__________________ 

Andrew Massey 

Legal Counsel  

86



z

Expense Ledger FY 2020-2021 FY 2021-2022 FY 2022-2023

Adopted Actuals Adopted Actuals Adopted Projected Proposed

Salary and Benefit Costs 

Account Description 

60001 Staff Salaries 234,254 172,085 250,564 250,564 275,933 275,933 292,488 16,555 

-

Employee Benefits and Retirement 

(ACERA) 122,903 88,649 123,411 123,411 124,558 124,558 132,031 7,473 

357,157 260,735 373,975 373,975 400,491 400,491 424,519 24,028 6.0%

Service and Supplies

Account Description 

- Intern 1,600 - - - - - - - -

610077 Postage 1,000 1,000 500 - 500 500 500 - -

610141 Copier 3,000 - 1,000 - 500 500 500 - 0.0%

610191 Pier Diems 8,000 7,100 8,500 5,600 7,500 7,500 9,000 1,500 20.0%

610211 Mileage/Travel 1,300 - 500 373 600 5,000 1,200 600 100.0%

610461 Training (Conferences and Workshops) 5,000 - 2,500
-

2,500 2,500 2,500 - 0.0%

610241 Records Retention 1,000 303 350 210 350 350 350 - 0.0%

610261 Consultants 96,000 42,527 100,000 152,709 150,000 150,000 160,000 10,000 6.7%

610261 Mapping - County 5,000 - 500 - - - - - -

610261 Planning Services 5,000 - 5,000 - 5,000 5,000 5,000 - 0.0%

610261 Legal Services 25,000 - 20,000 - 20,000 20,000 20,000 - 0.0%

610261 SALC Grant Charges - - 72,404 - -

610311 CAO/CDA - County - Services 1,000 7,700 1,000 - 1,000 - 250 - -

610312 Audit Services 10,000 - 10,000 - 10,000 - 10,000 - 0.0%

610351 Memberships 10,762 10,662 10,760 10,760 11,287 11,287 12,221 934 8.3%

610421 Public Notices 5,000 2,149 3,000 2,453 2,000 2,000 2,500 500 25.0%

610441 Assessor - County - Services 2,500 - 500 - 250 - 250 - 0.0%

610461 Special Departmental 1,500 1,000 1,500 233 1,500 1500 2,000 500 33.3%

620041 Office Supplies 4,000 916 4,000 28 3,000 3000 3,000 - 0.0%

186,662 73,357 269,610 Amended 244,769 215,987 209,137 229,271 13,284 6.2%

Internal Service Charges

Account Description 

630051 Office Lease/Rent/CDA 32,500 32,500 32,500 32,500 50,550 32,500 50,550 - 0.0%

630021 Communication Services 100 - 100 - 100 100 100 - 0.0%

630061 Information Technology 27,373 25,870 25,870 27,938 26,000 26,000 27,000 1,000 3.8%

630081 Risk Management 3,100 3,280 3,280 3,280 3,300 3,300 3,300 - 0.0%

63,073 61,650 61,750 63,718 79,950 61,900 80,950 1,000 1.3%

Contingencies 50,000 - 50,000 - 50,000 - 50,000 - 0.0%

Account Description 

- Operating Reserve - - - - - - - - - 

- - - - - - - - - 

655,335 Adopted

EXPENSE TOTALS 656,892 395,742 755,335 Amended 682,462 746,428 671,528 784,740 38,312 5.1%

Difference

FY 2023-2024

ALAMEDA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISION
Regional Service Planning | Subdivision of the State of California 

Attachment 2 / Exhibit A

87



Revenue Ledger FY 2020-2021 FY 2021-2022 FY 2022-2023

Adopted Actuals Adopted Actuals Adopted Projected Proposed

Intergovernmental 

Account Description

- Agency Contributions 

 County of Alameda 146,630 146,631 144,445 144,445 153,143 153,143 160,913 7,770 5.1%

  Cities 146,630 146,631 144,445 144,445 153,143 153,143 160,913 7,770 5.1%

  Special Districts 146,630 146,631 144,445 138,943 153,143 153,143 160,913 7,770 5.1%

439,891 439,891 433,335 427,833 459,429 459,429 482,739 23,310 5.1%

Service Charges

- Application Fees 30,000 38,643 30,000 6,434 30,000 5,000 30,000 - 0.0%

- SALC Grant Funds 100,000 Amended 72,404 

Investments

- Interest 7,000 8,965 7,000 5,765 7,000 7,000 7,000 - 0.0%

Fund Balance Offset 180,000 - 185,000 185,000 250,000 250,000 265,000 15,000 6.0%

655,335 Adopted

REVENUE TOTALS 656,891 487,499 755,335 Amended 697,436 746,429 721,429 784,739 38,310 5.1%

OPERATING NET (1) 91,757 - 14,974 1 49,901 - - -

UNRESTRICTED FUND BALANCE 1,153,327 883,301 683,202

Difference

FY 2023-2024

88



Priority Urgency Type Project Key Issues

1 High Statutory

2 High Statutory

3 High Statutory

4 High Administrative

5 High Statutory

6 High Administrative

7 High Administrative

8 Moderate Administrative

9 Moderate Statutory

10 Moderate Administrative

11 Moderate Statutory

12 Moderate Administrative

13 Moderate Administrative

14 Low Administrative

15 Low Administrative

16 Low Administrative

17 Low Administrative

Comprehensive Tri-Valley Area Study Region Specific MSR | Review of Potential Needs and Issues

LAFCO Office Move Fulfill Long-Term Lease in MOU with CDA; Aid in Hiring LAFCO Analyst

Application Proposals and Requests Utilize resources to address all application proposals and boundary issues

Create and Distribute Pamphlet for LAFCO Outreach and Education

Map all Unincorporated Islands and Examine Island Annexation Implementation Issues in 

Alameda County

Establish LAFCO Bank Account Deposit LAFCO Application funds for Special Projects and CALAFCO Conferences

Streamline LAFCO Application and County Mapping Requirements; Make User Friendly

Special Report on Service Delivery

Attend Meetings with Other Bay Area LAFCOs for Projects/Training 

Explore Opportunities and Share Practices for Collobaration on Recycled Water for the Region 

and Better Utilization of Imported Water

Bay Area LAFCO Meetings

Informational Report on Remen Tract

Update Application Packet and Mapping Requirements 

Prepare Informational Report on JPAs Post Enactment of SB 1266; Enhance Repository on Local Government Services

ALAMEDA LAFCO WORKPLAN | 2022-2023

Review of County Transfer of Jurisdiction Policies 

Community Services Municipal Service Review

Countywide MSR on Police Protection Services

2018-2021 Audits

Alameda LAFCO Brochure 

Informational Report on Island Annexations

Create Countywide Regional Water and Wastewater 

Committee

Unincorporated Areas Incorporation Feasbility Report

Ensure Policies are Consistent with CKH

SALC Grant Award Continue Two-Year Process on Grant Project and Track Agricultural Trends

Prepare a Feasibility Report on the Incorporation of Castro Valley and surrounding areas of 

Ashland, Cherryland, and San Lorenzo

Service Specific MSR | Identify Accessibility Issues for Broadband Services 

Examine Current Provision and Need for Police Services and Related Financial and Governance 

Considerations

Verify Fund Balance; Perform Regular Audits

Attachment 3

89



18 Low Administrative

18 Low Administrative

19 Ongoing Statutory

Website Content Update

Policy Review on Agricultural Protection and Out of Area 

Service Agreements

Periodical review of exisitng policies relative to practices and trends, and determine whether 

changes are appropriate to better reflect current preferences

Update Relevant Information on LAFCO Website and Create New Mapping Page

Social Media Expand Alameda LAFCO's Social Media Presence 

90



     
  

 
 

LAFCO 
Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission   
 

 

Administrative Office 
Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
224 West Winton Avenue, Suite 110 
Hayward, California 94544 
T:  510.670.6267 
www.alamedalafco.org 

Karla Brown, Regular 
City of Pleasanton 
 
Melissa Hernandez, Reg 
City of Dublin  
 
John Marchand, Alternate  
City of Livermore 
 

Ralph Johnson, Regular  
Castro Valley Sanitary District 
 
Vacant, Regular  
Special District Member 
 
Georgean Vonheeder-Leopold, Alternate 
Dublin San Ramon Services District 

 

Sblend Sblendorio, Chair 
Public Member  
 
Vacant, Alternate 
Public Member 

 

Nate Miley, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
David Haubert, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Vacant, Alternate 
County of Alameda  
 

 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

March 9, 2023  

Item No. 5 
TO:  Alameda Commissioners  
   

FROM: Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
   Ad Hoc Measure D Committee 
 
SUBJECT: Review of Draft Scope of Analysis for  

Agricultural Land Use Designation Project 
 

 

The Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) will receive a draft scope of analysis 

to guide a potential project for the County of Alameda’s Planning Department on the review of land 

use designations for agricultural land in the unincorporated areas of Alameda County. This includes 

setting the depth and range of the analysis as well as establishing any determination requirements. The 

draft scope of analysis is being presented for its review in anticipation of comment and feedback from 

the County of Alameda and is expected to return to the Commission for formal approval in May 2023. 

 

Background   

 

At the Transportation and Planning Committee meeting held on February 6th, a discussion was had that 

although most of the agricultural land in the unincorporated County is in the same zoning district, the 

“A” (Agriculture) District 1, there are three different general plan use designations that apply to the 

same areas – Large Parcel Agriculture, Resource Management, and Water Management – with 

differing levels of restrictions on development generally based on the environmental sensitivity of the 

land. It was pointed out that after the County’s East County Area Plan (ECAP) was amended in 

November of 2000, the zoning ordinance should have been amended to create new zoning districts 

specific to each of the general plan designations to address the different requirements of each. This has 

never been completed and has been added to the list of agricultural-related projects for the County’s 

Planning Department to complete. The project will also require clarifying the distinction between the 

land uses allowed in the Resource Management and Large Parcel Agriculture designations.  

 

At the Commission’s Ad Hoc Measure D Committee meeting held on Friday, February 24th, it was 

brought to the Committee’s attention that these land use designations of Resource Management and 

Large Parcel Agriculture should have better clarifying distinctions (topography, soil content, watershed 

requirements, etc.) as to their designations and the reasonings behind their classifications.  

 

It was recommended due to the limited staffing resources at the County’s Planning Department, 

LAFCO should draft a scope of work to outline a timeline and deliverables to guide this project and 

perhaps find a consultant to lead the County Planning assignment. The County would fund the project, 

and LAFCO would dedicate staff time to manage the initial phases.  

91



Alameda LAFCO 
March 9, 2023 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 5 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

2 | P a g e  

 

Discussion 

 

This item is for the Commission to review and authorize – with or without changes – a draft scope of 

analysis for circulation that guides the preparation and timing of the County’s task to designate 

Agricultural districts and land use distinctions therein, in anticipation of the item to return for formal 

adoption at the next regular meeting, which is tentatively scheduled for May 11, 2023. The draft 

markedly aims to formally reconcile the County’s statutory obligation to establish agriculture zoning 

districts along with the Commission’s staff resources and interests. This includes prescribing the depth 

and range of analysis – that includes formally setting the project areas and land use criteria subject to 

the study, as well as considering factors to be addressed in formulating the differing land use 

distinctions.  

 

Project Scope of Analysis 

 

As referenced, the following scope of analysis is presented for discussion and information to the 

Commission, and with the membership consent, will be sent to the County’s Community Development 

Agency for review and comment with a final version to be presented for approval in May 2023. As 

referenced in the preceding paragraphs, the scope of analysis is intended to provide a transparent road 

map in initiating the Agricultural Land Use Designation project and is premised on reconciling the 

County’s broad statutory obligation therein with LAFCO’s more finite resources and local interests. 

The scope of analysis is organized into six distinct and sequential phases. The proposed scope of 

analysis and timeline follows.  

 

Phase One: Parameter Setting   

 

This initial phase is directly drawn from the East County Area Plan and is for the County to formally 

designate the geographic area, subject land use designations, and affected criteria to be evaluated. 

Accordingly, and as contemplated earlier by the County in assigning the project – it is proposed the 

County designate the east county region and Castro Valley Canyonlands as the geographic area. It is 

proposed three broad categories will serve as the analysis focus that traverses all three referenced 

land uses and include (A) Large Parcel Agriculture (B) Resource Management and (C) Water 

Management. This setting would necessitate evaluations of the topographies, demands, and functions 

of all three land use designations that ultimately influence the distribution, maintenance and viability 

of agricultural and open space lands in the unincorporated area of Alameda County.   

 

 

 Geographic Area:  East County and Castro Valley Canyonlands 

 

 

Subject Categories:     Large Parcel Agriculture, Resource Management and Water 

Management 

  

 

Timeline: May 2023 | Corresponds to Approving Scope of Analysis  

 

92



Alameda LAFCO 
March 9, 2023 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 5 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

3 | P a g e  

 

Phase Two: Request for Proposals 

 

This second phase involves preparing a Request for Proposals (RFP) to select a professional 

consultant to complete the project. LAFCO staff will work with the County in setting the criteria for 

candidate selections and organizing interviews and evaluations of candidates.  

 

 

 Item:    Request for Proposals 

 

 Objective:   Select consultant that will commence and complete project 

 

Period:     45 days  

 

Timeline: May 2023 to July 2023  

 

 

Phase Three: Data Collection  

 

This third phase involves the data collection needed for the project. The consultant will work 

directly with County staff/stakeholders and incorporate information collected and analyzed to 

inform the subsequent phases of land use assessments, functions, and zoning districts. This phase 

is expected to be the most time-consuming part of the project and is expected to take up to five 

months to complete. An anticipated outline of the project anchoring the administrative copy 

follows.  

 

 

 Item:    Data Collection 

 

Objective: Compile necessary data and analysis to inform zoning district 

requirements 

 

Period:     6 months  

 

Timeline: July 2023 to January 2024  

 

 

Phase Four: Draft Report  

 

This fourth phase involves preparing a draft report that will be presented to the County’s Planning 

and Transportation Committee for discussion and feedback at a public meeting as part of a noticed 

hearing. This phase will incorporate any technical corrections or related edits identified during the 

earlier review of the administrative copy and will take approximately two months to prepare. The 

draft report, pertinently, will be a complete document and include an executive summary, regional 

analysis, and the determinations of zoning districts as required under the County’s General Plan.  

 

 

93



Alameda LAFCO 
March 9, 2023 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 5 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

4 | P a g e  

  

Item:    Draft Report 

 

Period:     2 months  

 

Timeline: January 2024 to March 2024  

 

Phase Five: Public Review  

 

This fifth phase involves commencing a formal public comment period on the draft report from staff 

as well as performing associated outreach with the affected agencies and interested stakeholders.    It 

is proposed the public comment period extend to 60 days during which time all written submittals 

received by the deadline would be incorporated into the final report as an appendix.  It is also 

proposed staff and the Chair or his designee would make presentations on the draft report to any 

requesting agency or stakeholder group during this review period.   

 

 

 Item:    Public Review 

 

Period:     60 days  

 

Timeline: March 2024 to May 2024 

 

  

 Phase Six: Final Report    

 

The sixth and final phase involves preparing a final report by the consultant to be presented to the 

County of Alameda for action at a noticed public hearing.  The final report will address and – as 

appropriate – incorporate updates from the earlier draft based on new information or comments 

generated during the preceding public review period.    

 

Item:   Final Report 

 

Actions:  (a) Accept Final Report and (b) Adopt Zoning Districts 

 

Timeline:  July 2024 

 

 

Analysis  

 

Staff believes the proposed scope of analysis outlines an approximately 15-month process for the 

County to effectively determine and assess land use designations of agricultural lands in the east county 

area with information to establish and complete agriculture zoning districts. The County will be able 

to proactively assess and clarify to the public the underlining criteria of its land use designations and 

future agriculture zoning districts that can enhance the connectivity and landscape of the region. 

 

 

 

94



Alameda LAFCO 
March 9, 2023 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 5 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

5 | P a g e  

 

Alternatives for Action  

 

The following alternatives are available to the Commission:  
 

Alternative One (Recommended):  
Review the draft scope of analysis and identify any desired changes before authorizing staff to solicit 
comments from the County of Alameda’s Community Development Agency.  
 
Alternative Two:  
Continue consideration of the item. 
 
 
Recommendation 

 

It is recommended the Commission proceed with Alternative Action One.  
 

Procedures   

 

This item has been placed on Alameda LAFCO’s agenda as part of the business calendar. The 

following procedures are recommended in consideration of this item: 

 

1. Receive verbal presentation from staff unless waived.  

2. Invite any comments from the public 

3. Provide feedback on the item as needed. 

 
Respectfully,  

 
Rachel Jones 
Executive Officer 

 

 

Attachment: none 

 

 

 

 

 

 
1 Chapter 17.06 – A Districts: 

https://library.municode.com/ca/alameda_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT17ZO_CH17.06ADI 

95

https://library.municode.com/ca/alameda_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT17ZO_CH17.06ADI


Blank for Photocopying 

96



     
  

 
 

LAFCO 
Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission   
 

 

Administrative Office 
Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
224 West Winton Avenue, Suite 110 
Hayward, California 94544 
T:  510.670.6267 
www.alamedalafco.org 

Karla Brown, Regular 
City of Pleasanton 
 
Melissa Hernandez, Reg 
City of Dublin  
 
John Marchand, Alternate  
City of Livermore 
 

Ralph Johnson, Regular  
Castro Valley Sanitary District 
 
Vacant, Regular  
Special District Member 
 
Georgean Vonheeder-Leopold, Alternate 
Dublin San Ramon Services District 

 

Sblend Sblendorio, Chair 
Public Member  
 
Vacant, Alternate 
Public Member 

 

Nate Miley, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
David Haubert, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Vacant, Alternate 
County of Alameda  
 

 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

March 9, 2023  

Item No. 8a 
TO:  Alameda  Commissioners  
   

FROM: Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Current and Pending Proposals 
 

 

The Commission will receive a report identifying active proposals on file with the Alameda Local 

Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) as required under statute. The report also identifies 

pending local agency proposals to help telegraph future workload. The report is being presented 

to the Commission for information only.   

 

Information / Discussion   

 

The Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 (“CKH”) delegates 

LAFCOs with regulatory and planning duties to coordinate the formation and development of local 

government agencies and their municipal services. This includes approving or disapproving boundary 

changes involving the formation, expansion, merger, and dissolution of cities, towns, and special 

districts, as well as sphere of influence amendments. It also includes overseeing outside service 

extensions. Proposals involving jurisdictional changes filed by landowners or registered voters must 

be put on the agenda as information items before any action may be considered by LAFCO at a 

subsequent meeting.  

 

Current Proposals | Approved and Awaiting Term Completions   

 

Alameda LAFCO currently has no proposals on file that were previously approved and awaiting term 

completions. CKH provides applicants one calendar year to complete approval terms or receive 

extension approvals before the proposals are automatically terminated.   

 

Current Proposals | Under Review and Awaiting Hearing    

 

There are currently no active proposals on file with the Commission that remain under administrative 

review and await a hearing as to the date of this report.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

97



Alameda LAFCO 
March 9, 2023 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 8a 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

2 | P a g e  

 

Pending Proposals    

 

There are currently two new potential proposals at the moment that staff believes may be submitted to 

the Commission from local agencies based on ongoing discussions with proponents. 

 

▪ Annexation of West Jack London Boulevard | City of Livermore   

The City of Livermore plans to annex two parcels on West Jack London Boulevard that 

total 71 acres within the unincorporated area of Alameda County. The purpose of the 

annexation is to facilitate the Oaks Business Park for the development of offices, research 

institutions, warehousing, manufacturing, and limited business supporting commercial 

uses.   

 

▪ Reorganization of Appian Way/Louis Ranch Property | ACWD and USD 

The Alameda County Water District (ACWD) and Union Sanitary District (USD) plan to 

annex one parcel totaling approximately 30 acres within the City of Union City. The 

purpose of the annexation is to develop 325 single-family residential units on nine parcels 

totaling 98.6 acres.  

 

Alternatives for Action 

 

This item is for informational purposes only. No formal action will be taken as part of this item. 
 

Attachments: none 

 

98



     
  

 
 

LAFCO 
Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission   
 

 

Administrative Office 
Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
224 West Winton Avenue, Suite 110 
Hayward, California 94544 
T:  510.670.6267 
www.alamedalafco.org 

Karla Brown, Regular 
City of Pleasanton 
 
Melissa Hernandez, Reg 
City of Dublin  
 
John Marchand, Alternate  
City of Livermore 
 

Ralph Johnson, Regular  
Castro Valley Sanitary District 
 
Vacant, Regular  
Special District Member 
 
Georgean Vonheeder-Leopold, Alternate 
Dublin San Ramon Services District 

 

Sblend Sblendorio, Chair 
Public Member  
 
Vacant, Alternate 
Public Member 

 

Nate Miley, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
David Haubert, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Vacant, Alternate 
County of Alameda  
 

 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

March 9, 2023  

Item No. 8b 
TO:  Alameda Commissioners  
   

FROM: Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Progress Report on 2022-2023 Work Plan  
 

 

The Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) will receive a progress report on 

accomplishing specific projects as part of its adopted work plan for 2022-2023. The report is being 

presented to the Commission to formally receive and file as well as provide direction to staff as needed.  

 

Background   

 

Alameda LAFCO’s current strategic plan was adopted following a planning session on December 16, 

2019. The plan defines each of LAFCO’s priorities through overall goals, core objectives, and target 

outcomes with overarching themes identified as education, facilitation, and collaboration. The strategic 

plan is anchored by seven key priorities that collectively orient the Commission to proactively fulfill 

its duties and responsibilities under the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Act of 2000 in a manner responsive 

to local conditions and needs. These pillars and their related strategies, which premise individual 

implementation outcomes, are summarized in Attachment 1.  

 

1. Education – Serve as a resource to the public and local agencies to support orderly growth and 

logical sustainable service provision. 

 

2. Facilitation – Encourage orderly growth and development through the logical and efficient 

provision of municipal services by local agencies best suited to feasibly provide necessary 

governmental services and housing for persons and families of all incomes. 

 

3. Collaboration – Be proactive and act as a catalyst for change as a way to contribute to making 

Alameda County a great place to live and work by sustaining its quality of life. 

 

On May 13, 2021, Alameda LAFCO adopted the current fiscal year work plan at a noticed public 

hearing. The work plan is divided into two distinct categories – statutory and administrative – with one 

of three priority rankings: high; moderate; or low. The underlying intent of the work plan is to serve 

as a management tool to allocate Commission resources in an accountable and transparent manner over 

the corresponding 12-month period that pulls from the key priorities in the Commission’s 2020-2021 

Strategic Plan.  

 

 

99



Alameda LAFCO 
March 9, 2023 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 8b 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

2 | P a g e  

 

Further, while it is a standalone document, the work plan should be reviewed in relationship to the 

adopted operating budget given the planned goals and activities are facilitated and or limited 

accordingly.  

 

This item provides the Commission with a status update on two-dozen plus targeted projects 

established for the fiscal year with a specific emphasis on the “top ten” projects that represent the 

highest priority to complete during the fiscal year as determined by the membership. This includes 

identifying the projects already completed, underway, or pending in the accompanying attachment. 

The report and referenced attachment are being presented for the Commission to formally receive and 

file while also providing additional direction to staff as appropriate.  

 

Discussion  

 

The Commission has initiated work on nine of the nineteen projects included in the adopted work plan. 

This includes progress on projects, such as the municipal service review (MSR) on Fire Protection and 

Emergency Medical Services, Unincorporated Areas Incorporation Feasibility Report, LAFCO Office 

Move, 2022-2023 Audit Report, Countywide Regional Water and Wastewater Committee, and the 

Sustainable Agriculture Lands Conservation Planning Grant. 

 

Alternatives for Action 

 

This item is for informational purposes only. No formal action will be taken as part of this item. 
 
 

Attachments: 
1. 2020-2021 Strategic Plan  
2. 2022-2023 Work Plan  

 

100



2020 -2021

STRATEGIC
PILLARS

CORE
STRATEGIES

TARGET 
OUTCOMES

Unfunded liabilities in services - do more to 
encourage future planning

Coordinate with other agencies to determine 
high-need areas (DUCs)

Promote inter-agency special projects and 
partnerships

Work with stakeholders to identify issues 
under LAFCO jurisdiction related to economic 
viability of agriculture

Establish policies and standards to address 
sustainability of adequate and reliable water 
supplies, including the use of recycled water

Conduct joint LAFCO workshops

Create homelessness intiatives with other 
agencies 

Provide Presentations to City Councils, Special 
Districts, and the County on upcoming projects 
and LAFCO's role

Understand local agricultural issues and then 
consider a study

Identify emerging issues, i.e. water treatment 
changes

Educate public on service costs

Determine LAFCO's role in housing 

Regulate land use through the extension of 
services

Provide more guidance on regional issues

Create a five-year island annexation plan

Prepare comprehensive study on climate 
change

Encourage consolidations or review shared 
opportunities

Enagage with the community through LAFCO outreach 
as well as receive presentations from outside 
stakeholders and  local agencies to understand issues

Use LAFCO authority through municipal services 
reviews and change of organizations to promote the 
change in the region aligned with its mission

Always seek, determine, and question if any 
regional issues are opportunities for partnerships 

Review growth boundaries and governance

EDUCATION FACILITATION COLLABORATION

ALAMEDA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION

Serve as a resource to the public and to local 
agencies to support orderly growth and logical, 
sustainable service provision

Encourage orderly growth and development 
through the logical and efficient provision of 
municipal services by local agencies best 
suited to feasibly provide necessary 
governmental services and housing for 
persons and families for all incomes.

Be proactive and act a catalyst for change as 
a way to contribute to making Alameda 
County a great place to live and work by 
sustaining the quality of life. 

MISSION STATEMENT:  Alameda LAFCO provides oversight over local governments to make Alameda County a great place to live and work by 
balancing the preservation of agriculture and open space with the provision of sustainable municipal servces 

STRATEGIC PLAN

Attachment 1

101



Priority Urgency Type Key Issues

1 High Statutory

2 High Statutory

3 High Statutory

4 High Administrative

5 High Statutory

6 High Administrative

7 High Administrative

8 Moderate Administrative

9 Moderate Statutory

10 Moderate Administrative

11 Moderate Statutory

12 Moderate Administrative

13 Moderate Administrative

14 Low Administrative

15 Low Administrative

16 Low Administrative

17 Low Administrative

ALAMEDA LAFCO WORKPLAN | 2022-2023

Ensure Policies are Consistent with CKH

Continue Two-Year Process on Grant Project and Track Agricultural Trends

Prepare a Feasibility Report on the Incorporation of Castro Valley and surrounding areas of 

Ashland, Cherryland, and San Lorenzo

Service Specific MSR | Identify Accessibility Issues for Broadband Services 

Second MSR on Fire and Emergency Services sine 2006 | Address Shared Opportunities 

Verify Fund Balance; Perform Regular Audits

Explore Opportunities and Share Practices for Collobaration on Recycled Water for the Region 

and Better Utilization of Imported Water

Post Enactment of SB 1266; Enhance Repository on Local Government Services

MSR on resource conservation in Alameda County 

Fulfill Long-Term Lease in MOU with CDA; Aid in Hiring LAFCO Analyst

Examine Current Provision and Need for Police Services and Related Financial and Governance 

Considerations

Create and Distribute Pamphlet for LAFCO Outreach and Education

Map all Unincorporated Islands and Examine Island Annexation Implementation Issues in 

Alameda County

Project

Community Services Municipal Service Review

General MSR on Fire Protection and Emergency Services 

Alameda County Resource Conservation District MSR 

LAFCO Office Move

Countywide MSR on Police Services 

South Livermore Valley Area Specific Plan

2022-2023 Audit Report

Alameda LAFCO Brochure 

Informational Report on Island Annexations

Create Countywide Regional Water and Wastewater 

Committee

Unincorporated Areas Incorporation Feasbility Report

SALC Grant Award

Prepare Informational Report on JPAs

Review of County Transfer of Jurisdiction Policies 

Update Application Packet and Mapping Requirements 

Informational Report on Remen Tract

Bay Area LAFCO Meetings

Provide a LAFCO Update on Plan and Review Current Trends

Streamline LAFCO Application and County Mapping Requirements; Make User Friendly

Special Report on Service Delivery

Attend Meetings with Other Bay Area LAFCOs for Projects/Training 

Attachment 2 

102



18 Low Administrative

18 Low Administrative

19 Ongoing Statutory

Policy Review on Agricultural Protection and Out of Area 

Service Agreements

Periodical review of exisitng policies relative to practices and trends, and determine whether 

changes are appropriate to better reflect current preferences

Communicate LAFCO's Mission and Goals to the Community

Social Media Expand Alameda LAFCO's Social Media Presence 

Host Alameda County Special District Association Meeting

103


	03_09_23_Agenda
	03_09_23_AgendaItemNo3a_Minutes
	03_09_23_AgendaItemNo3b_ACRCD-ContractExtension
	03_09_23_AgendaItemNo3c_Budget
	03_09_23_AgendaItemNo4_DraftOperatingBudgetWorkplan
	03_09_23_AgendaItemNo5_ResourceManagement_ScopeofWork
	03_09_23_AgendaItemNo8a_Proposals
	03_09_23_AgendaItemNo8b_Workplan



